March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 1 of 24

MINUTES
JOINT PUBLIC HEARING
HILLSBOROUGH TOWN BOARD and PLANNING BOARD
Thursday, March 20, 2008
7:00 PM in the Town Barn

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Mayor Tom Stevens, Commissioners L. Eric
Hallman, Evelyn Lloyd, and Brian Lowen.
ABSENT: Commissioner Francis Dancy and Mike Gering, abseezcused.

PLANNING BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Matthew Farrelly, Dan Barker, Kate Faherty, Neil
Jones, Stephen Whitlow, Dave Remington, Barrie #¢all Toby Vandemark, and Elizabeth
Woodman.

STAFF PRESENT: Planning Director Margaret Hauth, Town Attorriggb Hornik

ITEM #1: Call to Order.

Mayor Stevens called the public hearing to ordef:.@8 p.m. He did not read the Public Charge but
noted it would be followed. Mayor Stevens themédr the public hearing over to Planning Board
Chair Matthew Farrelly.

ITEM #2. Additionsto the Agenda and Agenda Adjustments
There were no additions or adjustments to the agend

ITEM #3: Convene Special Joint Public Hearing with the Town Board to continue
consideration of the Corbinton Commons Special Use Permit Amendment to
convert toa CCRC model for 274 unitswith 47 single-family houses.

7:05:37 PM  Mr. Farrelly asked Ms. Hauth was it necessaryrvigde an update to the Boards.

Ms. Hauth responded she would prefer that the egmiitalk about any changes to the application.

She reminded those who wished to speak that thest bwi sworn, but if they had been previously

sworn they should indicate that.

7:06:35 PM  Craig Ferri, Vice President for Construction withyC Companies, who was
previously sworn, stated they would endeavor tqpkéeir portion of the meeting to 30 minutes, and
to that end he would speak for a few minutes albdat they had come away from the last meeting
with, that David Segmiller and Steve Chomick witieéman White would go through the architectural
changes, Kevin Hamak with John R. McAdams Compaaylavdiscuss the affect of the changes on
the site plan, Bob Lippard with Drucker and Falkulebspeak about Duke’s role in the project and the
Wellness Center in general, and Kent Phillips vidtitific Retirement would discuss their experience
with CCRC’s in general.

7:07:58 PM  Mr. Ferri said they had come away from the Fely2d meeting with a list of 13
items for which more information or answers weredexzl. He then went through the items:
1. That the proposed changes revenue neutral éofftlwvn. Response: It is anticipated that the
proposed changes would be revenue neutral to te to
2.  Provide drawings or animation showing bettemgidrom all sides of the sites. Response: The
booklets provided to the Boards have the revisad/ithgs.



March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 2 of 24

3. Conduct a balloon test for the Boards and neighto see. Response: Notices were delivered
and 12 balloons were flown on March 11 and Marclidlan elevation of 50 feet, which was
the eave elevation, relative to where the propgsade would be. Another cluster of balloons
were flown at the ridge elevation, which was 70t.fe@hose numbers match the building
design being looked at this evening.

4. Provide the correct floor plans for the singleafly units and the other corrected site plans.
This primarily dealt with the fact that the prevsosite plan did not have the correct footprint
for the Wellness Center nor for the cottages. Resgo That has all been corrected.

5. Provide the exact impervious calculations. Rasp: The calculations had gone form 32% to
36.7% with the changes noted in the packets.

6. Provide final parking plans showing the correatmber of parking spaces. Response: The
packet provided now contained the correct numbgraoking spaces, which met the parking
requirements of the Town and is shown accurateltherdrawings.

7. Provide a detailed explanation of how the fegpse units fit into the community and how they
relate to the CCRC program, and whether they cdiddadded to the CCRC program.
Response: Ken Phillips would provide informatiomesponse to this request.

8. Need a statement from Town Engineer/UtilitieseDior Kenny Keel outlining what they can
do to the sanitary sewer easement to screen therGaeperty. Response: Mr. Keel indicated
that no plantings could be done, but was not oppdsea fence with gates. That screening
would be worked out with the Gaster family.

9. Need a statement in writing committing to neeend the main road on the western portion of
the site to St. Mary’s Road. Response: Languagk been added to the re-submittal that
would be placed on the plan and become part ofctimestruction drawing approval, which
stated that “By approval of this site plan and e modification of the SUP of 2005-6, the
Corbinton Commons development agrees that it vellmake any connections from its streets
to St. Mary’s Road.”

10. Provide other options showing decreased buyldieight and adjustments to density.
Response: The revised plans reflect that, andpplemental plan provided tonight was an
additional option that included the elimination tbe fifth floor, the addition of subsurface
parking, and the addition of some duplex unitse ®kerall number of units did not change.

11. If possible, provide a letter of intent from K8u Response: Bob Lippard would address
Duke’s involvement in the project.

12. What was the anticipated percentage of paatitgp of members of the Wellness Center from
outside the development based on other sites,Résponse: It is expected that given the size
of the Wellness Center, there would be approxige@&D members, with 350 being from the
Corbinton community, and the balance from the comityuat large. That resulted in 54%
being Corbinton residents, and 46% non-Corbintsidents.

13. Provide information about the service providRagific Retirement, list of services provided to
the residents, etc. Response: Provided in thkepgaevas the list of services mistakenly left
out of the previous packet. Ken Phillips wouldapspecifically to this question.

Mr. Ferri asked David Segmiller and Steve Chomakxplain the architectural changes.

7:13:52 PM  David Segmiller, a Principle with Freeman Whitéeahaving been sworn, stated he
was the Principle in charge of this project. Heed that they had made some significant changes to
the site plan and to the overall building desigma¢oommodate the change from the fifth/no fifttoflo
and doing the buildings in all three stories andr fstories, as well as adding some duplex units to



March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 3 of 24

account for some of the units lost. He said thag hlso made a change to accommodate a key
neighbor by providing a deeper buffer.

7:15:11 PM  Steve Chomick, a Principle with Freeman White, tedlead designer on this project,
who was previously sworn, said that the lowestlle® parking level, had not changed significantly
from the last drawings except that they had anteadiof a subsurface parking deck as well as
connection of more parking spaces underneath the lmdding. He stated that all of that parkingsva
below grade. Mr. Chomick stated that in additibare was the illustration of the health care paykin
and outside terraces.

Mr. Chomick stated that the grade level of the "@@RC had surface parking as well as an elevated
deck in addition to six duplexes within the 50-fkatffer. He said when the fifth floor was removed
those units were placed at grade.

7:16:15PM  Mr. Chomick said when they had moved the dupledesn they had moved the
bigger buildings further away from the buffer anditfier away from the neighbors so that the three-
story piece was actually further from the propdiye and the 100-foot buffer than it was before.
Then, he said, the duplexes were added to commefmsahe units removed to lower the buildings.

Mr. Chomick stated they were asked to identifypleking count, and the counts were tabulated in the
packet of information. He said in the interim beém the presentation in the packet and tonight's
meeting, they had met with Lee Gordon, a key neaghto talk about an alternate solution. Mr.
Chomick said one of those alternate solutions watske those cottages and rotate them 90 degrees
and push them back another 25 feet. He said that them the 75 foot buffer from the building edge
to their property line.

Mr. Chomick said updated elevations of the campsslfihad been provided, with the three-story
health care building facing the southeast and dbie-$tory apartments along US 70. He said they had
broken up the scale of the building to reduce trerall length to make it look smaller along thatda

Mr. Chomick said they were asked to evaluate trhghtsiines (building visibility) along the
southeast/northeast cut to come out to St. Margad? He said they had checked the Orange County
GIS map to look at all surrounding properties aledaions, coming to Lee Gordon’s property and his
line of sight at the back of his property. He sfam that line of sight, you would not see therfou
story building, or if you did it would be a minimpbrtion of the roof line.

7:20:14 PM  Mr. Segmiller stated that the Wellness Center @wdatlude a clinical component
which would provided services to the seniors oa aitd would be open to the public as well. He said
it would include an indoor running track and exsecioom, as well as a swimming pool.

Mr. Chomick stated the amenities listed previousigre still in the plan, including walking trails,
gardening plots, cottages that were associated iWwehCCRC, and the active adult component with
open greens. He then displayed the floor planghi®warious dwellings.

Kevin Hamak, a Landscape Architect with the JohnMRAdams Company, who was previously

sworn, stated that their stormwater engineers kadalyzed the impervious surface with the ponds
that were previously approved, and the imperviaugase amount had increased from 32% to 36.7%.
He said in the analysis what the engineers haddfeuas that the pond on the west side could handle



March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 4 of 24

the slight increase, and the east pond would havectease about one-third. Mr. Hamak said there
was enough room in the current locations with nang/e in the pipes necessary, only some adjusted
grading.

7:23:13 PM  Mr. Barker said they had the alternate plan, ast@@ had that calculation been done
on the new plan. Mr. Hamak said not on the newiest, but it was only a minor difference.

7:23:52 PM  Mr. Segmiller stated on the plans they had shdvenalley as a better way to allow
the people living there to not feel like they wéweng in a parking lot, but if it were a big isstieey
could live without the alley and just have the gasaface the front. He said he did not believé tha
would affect the impervious area.

7:24:37 PM  Mayor Stevens stated he wanted to disclose t@taed and to the public that he and
Commissioner Gering had met with Bob Lippard arelRtanning Director at Duke to talk generalities
and not the details of the project.

7:25:42 PM  Bob Lippard, Director of Senior Living with Drucké& Falk, and lead developer for
this project, stated one of the requests from &t ineeting was if Duke would provide a letter of
commitment that would indicate their participatiagsuming that the SUP amendment was approve.
He said that Duke was and would remain circumspbout their involvement until the amendment
was approved. Mr. Lippard said assuming they govdod and the CCRC was developed, he
reiterated Duke’s involvement with them in othepjpcts, including Fearrington Village and The
Cardinal at North Hills. Mr. Lippard then explath¢he lines of involvement, adding that Duke’s
preference would be that the primary care cliniaulddoe located where the health care facility was
located. He said they would provide the medica¢éaor, rehabilitation services, more than likely
pharmacy services, home health care services,eslass health and retirement, and any other health
services that made sense. Mr. Lippard said athase services were very similar to those proviaed
Fearrington Village and what was planned for theRCGn Raleigh, and would be the case here.

7:28:34 PM  Ms. Faherty said then the location of the healihe dacility may be moved. Mr.
Lippard said yes, if it made sense from the stamdpof the people on site who would most
predictably need medical care. He said the otheught was that the health care center would be
closer and more visible from US 70.

7:29:13 PM  Kent Phillips, a Principle with Pacific Retireme8ervices, Atlantic division, after
having been sworn, provided some brief informatabout his company, which was a 501(c)(3)
corporation, and the experience of the three Fpiesi He said this project was one of a handful of
new developments they were involved in on the Eastst, adding their eastern division office would
be in Charlotte. Mr. Phillips said he lived in €aso had a doubly vested interest in making duse t
project went well.

Mr. Phillips provided some information about hisygmany’s mission statement and value statement,
as listed in the information provided to the Boardde stated they wanted to enhance the lifestyles
seniors at every economic level. Mr. Phillips sailile this project would target upper income
seniors, they used that as a base of operatiopsotode additional community benefits in several
ways. One, he said, was that they would immedjiastablish a foundation and would contribute to
that foundation on an annual basis. Mr. Phillipglone of the primary purposes of that foundation



March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 5 of 24

would be to serve the needs of existing residembsild they run out of funds and not be able to pay
their monthly fees. Additionally, he said, thatifmlation was created to serve the community aklarg

Mr. Phillips said a second service that they likegrovide in every market where it made sense was
to provide affordable housing, generally under $setion 202 program. He said thirdly, they had a
volunteer program called RSVP, which stood for ReltiSenior Volunteer Program, where they

accessed the labor force in the senior populaboprovide services to the community at large. He
said those were the ways they provided communitefis to greater Hillsborough.

Mr. Phillips said their role would be to be the @wrrof the Corbinton Commons CCRC, and they
would manage it long-term. He said they would la&t through sole-membership of the not-for-profit
corporation, and would administer the communitydfies program as well. Mr. Phillips said in terms
of the placement of the CCRC directly adjacent dctive adult fee-simple homes, they did not see
that as a problem but in fact saw it as a benéfi. said he fully understood that they were botimgjo
after the same age and income-qualified individoad,the reality was that over time they believieat t
that active adult neighborhood would be a feedarcofor them.

7:36:27 PM  Mr. Phillips stated that their range of servicesl Hour levels: independent, assisted
living, dementia, and skilled nursing. He saiddpdndent living was self-explanatory, noting the
residents in independent living were provided orealna day, weekly or bi-weekly housekeeping as
the case may be, maintenance services, socialtestj\and access to the Duke Center for Living.

Mr. Phillips said assisted living residents woult/é services that were performed under licensule an
included assistance with activities of daily livirguch as bathing, grooming, dressing, toiletimgl a
eating. He said that dementia care was providel@mutie same licensure, but a patient with dementia
tended to wander so that would generally be a tmkn unit with access to outside wandering paths.
He said that skilled nursing services were alsbesgllanatory.

Mr. Phillips said all of the residents would haweess to the Duke Center for Living, and there woul
be a physician’s clinic on site as well.

7:38:07 PM  Commissioner Hallman said looking into the futwle&l he have any concerns about
the ongoing maintenance of the non-CCRC homes,ishdahe active adult, fee-simple homes. He
asked did it give them some concern ten to fiftgears out as to how the value of their propertyt nex
door might be affected if that maintenance wasdoote properly by the homeowners association. Mr.
Phillips responded while there was a buffer thbeebelieved the type of homes and the income levels
of the residents did not cause him a great deabo€ern, although he had not really thought abiout i
He said he did not consider it to be a big problem.

Commissioner Hallman said he believed ongoing reasnice was one of the reasons these two boards
had had problems with the MAHS model.

7:39:27 PM  Mr. Segmiller stated that the evidence showed tvatr time the CCRC provided
more services to the active adult community inltmg-term.

Mr. Phillips said initially there would not be at lof cross-over services provided from the CCRC to
the fee-simple homes, but over time as occupaneées stabilized on both sides, they would see that



March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 6 of 24

as an opportunity for some ancillary income to igeblved in providing such services which could
include maintenance services.

7:41:25 PM  Commissioner Lloyd asked what she would pay if geeided to move into an
independent housing unit. Mr. Phillips repliedrthevas a wide range based on apartment size, &ut th
average entrance fee was $400,000. Commissiongdldaid once she got in, would she then also
pay a monthly fee. Mr. Phillips said yes, and #werage monthly fee was $3,100, although the
apartment units were quite a bit lower than theéaget units. Commissioner Lloyd asked if that fee
covered everything rather than a la carte. MrlliBhisaid generally it was all inclusive excepath
only one meal was provided each day. Commissiblugtd asked would she be required to have her
own doctor if she lived in an independent housing. uMr. Phillips said she would certainly have th
choice to maintain her own physician, but there idoe a clinic on site and she could use the dector
at that clinic if she preferred. Mr. Lippard conmied that the entrance fee was 90% refundable to
your estate.

7:45:13 PM  Ms. Woodman stated that Rogue Valley Manor washmarger as far of the scale,
and asked was this one small in comparison. Millipthsaid this CCRC was small to medium,
adding that the Rouge Valley Manor was an anomaly.

Mr. Lippard stated that the facility at GallawaydBe was the exact same size. He said that others
they were doing were 200- 230 units, and the nusméed fees go directly to sizing.

Mr. Phillips said as far as pricing, they wouldelik offer some fully amortizing plans that wouldvea
smaller fees to bridge affordability, but there Wbbe no return to the estate after 4 years witlseh
plans.

7:48:06 PM Ms. Wallace asked was that what they meant byrddfde housing. Mr. Phillips
responded no, that they had other programs tha¢ \enerally HUD 202 programs which were
subsidized housing to address affordability. Haest they wanted to provide options for everyone.
Mr. Lippard commented that they were looking fdddD 202 site in Hillsborough.

7:49:51 PM  Mr. Farrelly asked how they would accomplish rax@neutrality. Mr. Lippard stated
that Ellis Coleman would respond to that shorthr. Farrelly said that it seemed that when he was
talking about fee simple, that he did not squaaglgiress the comment from the last meeting regarding
the experience with Carol Woods that having thglsifamily included in the CCRC provided a more
cohesive and integrated model. He asked why this avbetter model than having all the dwellings
part of the CCRC. Mr. Lippard replied that theunet relationship was positive to both sides asdte h
previously described. He said increasing the nunobeinits by 47 increased the timeframe for the
sales process, and when you elongated the devetbpneales process you increased the risk. Mr.
Lippard said it was their desire to bring a commyito the market with as little risk as possibleda
that risk was mitigated by sizing the communitysinch a way that it was large enough to be a
financeable community that allowed them to gettsthand to make the community real, which was
the overarching objective.

Ms. Woodman asked did that mean that selling tipeesive houses was easier than selling the CCRC
units? Mr. Lippard stated he was not relatingtihe; he was saying only that adding the additional
units elongated their sales process.



March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 7 of 24

Mr. Farrelly asked about the regulatory requirermetiscussed at the last meeting. Mr. Lippard
responded that they had to pre-sell 70% of the CGRIEG before they could begin construction.

Mr. Phillips added that 47 units meant at leastite health care beds to accommodate those people
who were paying entry fees, so they would haveudba bigger health care center than they had
today, as well as additional common space, parking,the like. He said the larger thing in thax mi
was that with the CCRC you were providing healthhecheds in specific relationship to the
independent units.

Mr. Lippard clarified that the 70% pre-sale rulesnaabond underwriting requirement, not necessarily
a regulatory requirement, but either way they lmdeet that 70%. He added he saw that as a plus,
because in the sales process you lost a numbestental depositors because there was a mind set
shift you had to go through where you were loogiogr fee simple title here but not replacing ittwit
fee simple title somewhere else; that you wererngagin entry fee and had no title to the propekty.
Lippard stated that was a tough hurdle for a pakEdepositor to get over. He said having a set of
homes that you could sell fee simple and still rencannected to the CCRC was a great advantage.

7:56:27 PM  Mr. Farrelly said they had talked about estabftigha foundation to service the
community, and asked was there a common missioth&trfoundation or was it tailored to the needs
of each community? Mr. Phillips stated they woséd up a foundation board and that board would
determine how that money was directed, includingayp fees for a resident who had run out of funds
and also to fund charitable activities in Hillsbogh.

Mr. Farrelly asked was most of the funds for resideor the community. Mr. Phillips replied they
were overwhelmingly focused on the community. Marrelly asked was that why the organization
was a 501(c)(3), in that profits were directed tmigathe foundation. Mr. Phillips stated certaitiig
foundation contributed to the community benefituiegment which allowed them to maintain their
501(c)(3) status, as did the affordable housingpament and the value of the volunteer programs.

7:59:15 PM  Commissioner Lloyd said it was her understandirag the independent housing units
would be purchased, and that did not go to the 000 She asked if she was age 82, how much she
would have to pay to get into the CCRC. Mr. Ligpaaid everyone would pay the same entry fee for
a particular unit type regardless of age, and theraage entrance fee was $400,000. Mr. Lippard
explained that they had said from the beginning tharitical element of this community was the
ability to draw people from Chapel Hill and Durhaas well as from Hillsborough. He stated their
lowest cost unit was 800 square feet with a 90%nadible entrance fee, at a cost of $260,000, and
with an amortizing plan of 40% lower. Mr. Lippasthted the upper end cottages would sell for as
high as $600,000. He said in totality, the monthdyvice fee covered nearly all of the daily living
costs. Mr. Lippard stated they were confidentt thigh new construction, that they were competitive
with 10-15 year old centers.

8:04:01 PM  Commissioner Lloyd asked if they would acceptihshe was not well. Mr. Lippard
responded that NC law prohibited direct admissitmnassisted or skilled facilities such as this. He
added that meals increased to three a day whemglivi the assisted living and skilled nursing
facilities.

Mr. Phillips stated that the lower cost unit Mrppard had described would carry a monthly fee 5 le
than $1,700 per month for the monthly service.



March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 8 of 24

8:05:01 PM  Several board members commented that they still i@ heard how the project
would be revenue neutral.

Ellis Coleman, after having been sworn, thanked Bloards for listening to the information and
moving forward in an expeditious manner. He saidtlte issue of taxes, he wanted to make two
points. Mr. Coleman said first, in all likelihodkde MAHS facility would also be a similar facilignd
financed the same way, and would also be a nontprblie said the difference was that you have 47
taxable houses rather than 69, and that the 47dniaalease in value faster with the CCRC to the
point that it was a relatively easy point for theoarmake that it was revenue neutral to the Town.

Mr. Coleman said his second point was that the teey NC statutes addressed property tax for
retirements was that just because they were a E8)1(did not mean that they were automatically
exempt from property taxes. He stated they woalkho apply for an exclusion and the way they got
that exclusion was to demonstrate that 5% of treienue was given back through some charitable
gift to the community. Mr. Coleman stated thereavevels in the statute in that it did not havé¢o
5% for a retirement community; they could meet 8% for total exemption or they could meet
something less than that for partial exemption. skid the point he wanted to make was that the Town
gets roughly 40% of the property tax revenue asse$fy both the Town and the County. Mr.
Coleman said so the Town would receive roughly 4ff%he tax generated from this property. He
said in the CCRC, it appeared that a dollar toighamould offset a dollar in tax, in that the 5%come
level was so high that it was comparable to the t&o, he said, the charitable contributions would
100% come to the community, whereas only 40% oftéxewould come to the community. Mr.
Coleman said that was the only assurance he cdigldtbat as you listen to the conversation abbat t
HUD 202 and the foundation, that the money comiacklinto the community was also demonstrating
their tax exempt status.

Mr. Coleman said it appeared to him that in a noofipsituation that the first three years would be

critical to a non-profit. He said the unusual thiabout this property was that it would be 100%
complete before it was occupied, so there woulddresiderable tax liability and consequences to the
bond during that initial period.

8:11:43 PM  Mr. Farrelly said he thought of this not so muahterms of the not-for-profit and
delivering value back to the community. He saiel tomment that the CCRC would add extra value
to the fee simple and that would make it a revamugral proposition was a bit of a fantasy. Helsai
the relevant comparison was counter factual whasedid not exist, and that there was another kind
community that was an alternative proposal butlainto what was there before where all the units
were paying property taxes. Mr. Farrelly said In@ught of this as if this was a different community
not including a not-for-profit, that was developsaine other way, and what the revenue would be to
the County and to the Town from that. Not, he saider these circumstances and assuming the
benefits of the foundation compute dollar for doflar the community because at some level that was
outside the control of the Town. Mr. Farrelly saigt of what they were talking about was making it
revenue neutral so that the Town had the revenusédaat its discretion. Mr. Coleman said his point
about it being revenue neutral was from the exgs8tP which was the MAHS facility. He said the
only difference would be the home units. Mr. Codensaid the MAHS facility would also be a non-
profit that was already permitted without paymentieu exceptions. So, he said, if the MAHS
facility that was already permitted today went fard, and the CCRC never appeared, there would be
no revenue from property tax.



March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 9 of 24

8:14:34 PM  Ms. Woodman stated she had thought there wastarp egtail component that would
be taxable. Mr. Coleman stated that was corrbat, there was an 8,000 square foot retail component
that would be a taxable entity. He said he didkmamiw if there were any retail components withia th
CCRC, such as the medical office, that was taxable.

8:15:13 PM  Mr. Barker said that this would require a sigrafit amount of Town services to be
provided to the site. He said the Town had acceptene not-for-profit land in this area with the
understanding that there would be taxable incoroerat. He said to him, the big revenue neutral
assumption was how they were going to pay for thiasen services, and from what had been stated
he was not seeing that. Mr. Barker said the stat¢megarding the foundation was that a lot of its
income would go back to the community and not tleaggr community, so he did not understand that
part, either. He asked how this could be perceagdevenue neutral. Mr. Phillips stated thatasw
understood that if the Town did not take the chaté contributions made into the community as the
same as tax, then you would have to look at tHeréifice between 69 and 47 homes, which was where
the tax difference was located, plus the retail.

Mr. Lippard added that they would also be creabegveen 145 and 150 full-time equivalent jobs at
an average salary of $38,000 a year, and with @netione jobs included the number would be about
200.

8:18:56 PM  Mr. Phillips stated that examples of charitablgirgg included Meals on Wheels,
children’s programs, and services to seniors aadltbabled, or any kind of charitable service thas

in need of additional funding. Mr. Barker askedhi¢ target was aging causes. Mr. Phillips stated
could be, but it depended on the board. He sant gtobal mission was to enhance the lifestyles of
seniors, but it was also to benefit the communididarge.

8:20:03 PM  Ms. Vandemark asked who made up the foundatiomdbodr. Phillips said there
would be local members on the board as well asleass. He said from history at other markets, the
boards were made up of a mix of people on the catpdoard and local individuals from the greater
community. Ms. Vandemark asked would the corpobaigrd be a local board, or the PRS board in
Oregon. Mr. Phillips responded the PRS board iegOn, because they wanted to have some input
into all of their boards.

Ms. Woodman said they must run into the revenuaeigs other towns, and asked what other
arrangements had been made in other towns. MiHipBhsaid it varied by municipality, and ran the
gamut from fully exempt from property taxes tolgidying those property taxes.

8:21:57 PM  Mayor Stevens asked for staff comments.

Town Attorney Bob Hornik said he had checked witha@el Hill Town Attorney Ralph Karpinos
regarding statutory references in regards to C&fobds. He said Mr. Karpinos had indicated that
Carol Woods was a tax exempt 501(c)(3), and redenim to a statute relative to providing 5% profit
to the community got you 100% tax exemption, thét got you 80%, and on down a sliding scale
until you got to 0%.

Mr. Lippard stated he had talked with the attorttesy had used with Gallaway Ridge, who had said
that these discussions arose with every developmEet said the attorney had suggested that when



March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 10 of 24

they saw that the amendment approval process wasmgtorward and in fact looked as if the Town
wanted the development, that at that point theudsions became more detailed as they moved closer
to approval. He added that lots of parties hadnéarest in this project, including the NC Medical
Care Commission, the State, and many other entdies they would have to engage each and every
one. Mr. Lippard said they could not make any s&ifihe-board commitment about that at this
juncture.

8:24:32 PM  Commissioner Lloyd asked if they were going tovte their own trash pick up, as
well as other services that people in the Towniveck Mr. Lippard stated he was not prepared to
answer that question. Commissioner Lloyd saiddiienot believe they could expect the citizens of
Hillsborough to subsidize this development. Shd bar point was that somebody had to pay for the
services the Town provided, and asked who that avbel

Town Manager Eric Peterson said in regards to tcadlection, the Town ordinance mandated that
they use a dumpster or fall into commercial coitecif there were five units that were contiguous o
greater. So, he said, with this project the Tovauld have to pick up trash at the single family lesm
and the duplexes, but everything else the develpatd be responsible for.

Mr. Lippard stated they were fully prepared to paywhatever services were provided on a billing
rate basis. He said they would also pay to hageltimpsters serviced.

Mr. Phillips stated the only services they woulddeeessing would be fire and police.

8:28:01 PM  Mr. Farrelly asked about the balloon test. Mmpard stated he did not have any
information, other than they were flown for the bfhof the neighbors and the Board members.

Mr. Farrelly asked when the notices had gone odtvaimat dates were they flown, noting he believed
that short notice was given. Mr. Phillips statedas subject to weather. He said when they saw th
had a window of opportunity they got the notice the next morning and did the morning the next
day, and the balloons were left up for two days.

Mr. Farrelly stated he had not seen it, and hetiva®ne that requested that it be done. He shialdit
happened over the weekend and he was out of Towhwas somewhat surprised that it had been
done on such short notice. Mr. Phillips stated tad only a small window of opportunity, because i
had to happen before the next meeting.

8:29:54 PM  Ms. Vandemark described what she had seen durenbadlloon test, noting she could
not see the balloons from Ayr Mount, but could gesm through some of the trees on St. Mary’s Road
as you headed towards Miller Street. She saichaldegone back later that afternoon and the balloons
had already started to tangle and come down, goufdid not see them right after they were flown
you would not have gotten the full effect. Ms. damark stated the problem was the wind, and there
was nothing the applicant could do about that.

Mr. Farrelly stated he would like to allow the piglib speak at this time.

8:31:22 PM  Penny Rand, who was previously sworn, asked beBbard not set a precedent for
four-story buildings and not to allow the alley saote in the alternative plan handed out this evening



March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 11 of 24

8:32:33 PM  Judith Harrow, after having been sworn, statedrsiee lived in Hillsborough for 20
years. She said that a four-story building wodtiasprecedent, and it was demeaning to the cleairact
of Hillsborough. Ms. Harrow stated that other sswf concern were traffic on US 70, and providing
water to the site.

8:34:25 PM  Pam lIsner, after having been sworn, stated slesl Inext to Lee Gordon, the key
abutter. She said she was not supportive of aweei that would allow a four-story building. Ms.
Isner commented that a darker building color waalkb be better; that she would prefer not to have
the alley; and liked the duplex concept.

8:35:48 PM  Andrea Shapiro, having been previously swornesdtatome people from EYC had
taken pictures of the balloons, but had not sh#reth today and wondered why. She said she could
see the top balloon from several of her windows, yasu would think that a 75-foot building would be
even more visible. But, she said, it would noteaese there were two buildings even larger that were
closer to her home. Ms. Shapiro stated that dmdybuilding in the center had been ballooned. She
said the amount of intrusion from 8 four-story dinlgs would be “huge.”

Mr. Farrelly asked had she seen the balloons tlrabhg trees or above the trees. Ms. Shapiro
responded through the tops of the trees, but thatthe building in the center. She reiterated tat
two other buildings would be closer, and the impeatild be huge.

Ms. Shapiro stated that this plan called for 278syuhere were 40 units in that plan on the fourth
floor; and, that if you took those away there wob&l 235 units which were five more than what had
been said was necessary to make the project wBHhe said therefore, if you took away the fourth
floor, you would have five more units that they hestified were needed.

Ms. Shapiro said the original buffer in the oridiG&JP was 100 feet; now it was 50 feet. She dad t
buffer should remain at 100 feet.

8:39:04 PM  Mr. Lippard stated that the assisted living, gkllinursing, and dementia units were
not units in the sense that they were talking abddg said they were essentially care rooms and the
number of units they were talking about was 227suni

Ms. Shapiro stated the information packet statatlttrere were 53 health care beds over and abeve th
275 units. Mr. Lippard stated of those 275 undfg,were not part of the CCRC but were the single-
family fee simple homes.

8:40:08 PM  Brenda Bryant, after having been sworn, said ohéep concerns was about the
buffer. She said her family’s property shared rglaistance with this site. Ms. Bryant stated she
wanted to see some type of really good buffer agfast growing cedars to supplement that buffer.
She said the alley was no good; that the concept@CRC was not bad; and, since it was part of the
Town it should honor the ordinances and not askf@xpect any variances.

8:42:41 PM  Lee Gordon, having been previously sworn, saidgm@eciated Mr. Coleman and his
company working so diligently to accommodate theimeors. He said it seemed that something
changed each day, and first up was the change &d®0’ buffer to a 50’ buffer with a 8-foot path
through the middle of it. Mr. Gordon said now fgimi, it had gone back to a 75-foot buffer with an 8
foot path and a 20-foot road. He said the optimsmared by the architect for the layering of



March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 12 of 24

vegetation between his home and others could al®m to see under the canopy, and, that canopy
would not be green year-round.

Mr. Gordon asked what the square footage was odidipgexes. Mr. Lippard said 800 square feet, with
a 3600 square foot footprint. Mr. Gordon said theyld likely do away with some of those units.

Mr. Gordon said originally the plan showed thatréheould be duplexes wrapped around the east and
southeast sides, but they had gone away and noywwthiee back again. He said he would like to see
them be benign in terms as the aesthetics as pmsaim while it was an exciting idea he questioned
the sacrifice they were being asked to make in wfrpotential property loss to accommodate this.

Mr. Gordon said if the project went forward, he Wblike to ask the developers to be accommodating
and remove the alley, to remove the ten duplexesjork cooperatively with neighbors to establish a
lighting plan, and to show them exterior elevatitimst were not the white boards being shown now.
Mr. Segmiller stated they would be providing skettusing different materials to help break the
buildings up.

Mayor Stevens asked if the use of brick was a pdggi Mr. Segmiller said it was a possibilityne
they would be happy to bring back drawings thatludiflerent materials.

Mr. Gordon remarked that he was impressed with thkoon test, but the size of the buildings

concerned him. He added that he would like toasishtional evergreen screening that would shelter
and screen the neighbors to a higher degree, évehad to be on his property and layered in. Mr.

Gordon added that allowing four-story buildings \bset a dangerous precedent.

8:49:20 PM  Dana Hauer, after having been sworn, stated sthenati like the proposal for four-
story buildings, but otherwise like the projectheSsaid she did not believe it would add to th#itra
issue because the residents would be retired pedpbewould not be adding vehicles to the rush
hours.

8:50:21 PM  Rolland Russell, after having been sworn, readitden statement from wife, Betsy,
which said in part that she was concerned thahtimber of residences and health care rooms in such
a limited area caused her concern about the qudliife the facility would be able to provide attte
impact that would have on their community. Ms. galks letter noted that the limited parking in the
site plan design was a problem, in that relatives faiends would avoid visiting residents due te th
difficulty of parking, and the addition of healttare rooms would exacerbate an already crowded
situation. Ms. Russell also objected to the additf a fourth floor to several of the buildingsting

that in the event of a fire evacuation would beconoee difficult. Her letter urged the Planning Biba

to recommend that the increased construction parevased.

Mr. Russell commented that he had served as a#&tist a 501(c)(3) elderly housing corporation, and
the Town was rightly concerned with the replacenudrits expenses and of its tax base with regard to
this property. He agreed with his wife’s commerggarding the need for increased parking for
visitors as well as staff, and agreed with Ms. Hathat traffic should not be an issue other than
internally as people came and went throughout #ye d

8:55:22 PM  Mary Kay Obenchain, after having been sworn, dt#tat her stress level declined as
she drove home from work in Raleigh to Hillsborowgdgch day. She said that four-story buildings



March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 13 of 24

would not add to the ambiance of the Town and toAwaild seem out of place. Ms. Obenchain stated
that was why they had ordinances, and hoped thapkm would adhere to those ordinances rather
than setting a precedent. She said she was ateerred about the additional infrastructure expgnse
involved, and ask if arrangements could be madwte attorneys sit down and work that out, because
it seemed that an elderly population would needh ghings as additional ambulance services. Ms.
Obenchain said she was also concerned about thilatahy of water, and wanted to have that looked
at more closely. She said her final comment waatwiould happen if the 70% pre-sales were not
successful, and how would that relate to any agee¢srmade between the developer and the Town.

8:58:12 PM  Mr. Segmiller stated that the four-story schemes waa attempt to keep the buffer and
reduce the impact on the neighbors, so they haldgauthe buildings closer together and by nature had
to make it a little taller in order to get the nuenlof units necessary. He said the fact that & wa
four-story building did not alarm them because thag done CCRC'’s that were high rises, and that
independent residents would be on those higherdlodr. Segmiller added that the buildings were
built to very high fire code standards and were%a@prinklered.

8:59:29 PM  Mr. Lippard added that in terms of the well-bewfghe residents of this community,
the importance of being able to easily access wtherservices of this community were delivered had
a lot to do with why the community was designedtagas. He stated that ease of access to shared
services directly impacted design.

9:00:32 PM  Mr. Segmiller added they believed they had alreadgressed the parking issue,
adding that the balance issue was that as resitieatsin the facility they tended to get rid ofeih
vehicles. He said five to ten years from now tdey not want to have a sea of asphalt that was not
being used. Mr. Segmiller said people would mawe the community with one and perhaps two cars,
but over time those vehicles would no longer bedede

9:01:48 PM  Ms. Vandemark asked if transportation serviceslavdne provided to such areas as
grocery stores, doctor’s offices, and that kindhafig. Mr. Segmiller replied yes.

9:02:10 PM  Mr. Whitlow asked was there enough room for twopiaffic to access the parking
structure. Mr. Segmiller replied yes.

9:02:52 PM  Mr. Phillips said regarding comments about the 4@%-sale and what happened it
that was not successful, they enjoyed a very sefdtation with the lenders and underwriters ardl ha
one of the highest occupancy rates in their paafol projects. He said that at least three ptsjéad
been handed to them from underwriters and bankeis bccupancy problems.

9:05:45 PM  Mayor Stevens asked were there other four-stordibg in the Town or in their
planning jurisdiction. Ms. Hauth stated she coubd confirm that one way or another. She said the
ordinance allowed building heights of 65 feet innpdistricts.

9:06:16 PM  Mayor Stevens said the question about facadesnaterials had been answered. He
said they had talked about the wellness centergbaimost half and half public use, and asked was
there pedestrian access from the downtown to te8 sMr. Coleman said there was pedestrian access
proposed to Caine Street. He said Caine Streetlwasd for 400 feet which was Ms. Gaster’s yard,
and in the final negotiations they had agreed tselthat. Mr. Coleman said an alternative that he
would like to pursue would be some sort of an axtieough the Sans Souci Estate, perhaps by way of



March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 14 of 24

an easement. He said they had not yet looked abiifC&treet, because there was also direct
connection to the unopened part of Corbin Strédhyor Stevens added particularly to the fee simple
houses. He said he understood there were somerosnwith that, but there were real advantages to
not having people driving in a community facility.

9:07:38 PM  Mayor Stevens said something addressed very eadythat they were really looking
at an either/or situation. He said this was ansualsituation in that we already have an approved
SUP, and we were looking at an alternative as aipitisy. Mayor Stevens said he wanted to make
sure they had some clarity as they went forward,assuming this project was approved, they wanted
it to be successful. Mr. Hornik said when the Malgad said this was an either/or situation, what th
applicant was asking for was to add this as amraltere to the approved SUP. He said they were not
saying that this would be substituted for the MAH®BIt were saying that if the new plan were
approved, then the CCRC would take its place. M&tevens said if for some reason this was not
successful, they could not take part of this plad jput it with the previous plan without beginniig
process all over again.

9:08:54 PM Mr. Coleman said for the benefit of those who may know the details or the entire
history of this, there were three parties involveéke Town, the neighbors, and the applicants.s&ie
that all three parties lost under the existing SUN®.. Coleman explained the differences between a
MAHS and a CCRC, and how much improved the senacescare would be under the new plan. He
also described other improvements made to thessite the original plan was approved, and well as
the perceived advantage and disadvantages.

9:12:14 PM  Mayor Stevens stated that the issue of revenugateamained uncertain. He said he
wanted to commend all parties for open communioadiod cooperation.

9:12:53 PM  Ms. Wallace said if they could not agree that fetaries was acceptable, then they
needed to clearly say that now before the publézihg was closed.

9:13:30 PM  Mr. Farrelly said they needed to feel that thegt bH the information they needed to
make a recommendation to the Town Board beforengdbe public hearing. He said if they felt they
did not have all the information they needed, th®em hearing should be extended yet again. Ms.
Wallace said if they were going to reject it on Haesis of the four stories, especially, then thegded

to discuss that before the hearing was closed sktha applicant to respond.

9:14:22 PM  Commissioner Hallman agreed, noting he wanted atersure they were doing in
public hearing what they should be doing in pubkaring, and that the respective boards were doing
what they were suppose to be doing.

9:14:35 PM  Ms. Vandemark said regarding height, she beligiaegt should forget the number of
stories and look at the number of feet in heigblhe asked was there anything that spoke to howahigh
building could be. Mr. Hornik said that most liations in the Zoning Ordinance were based on the
number of feet and not stories, but for this patéic district there was no foot or height limitatjo
although it did have a three-story limit.

Mr. Farrelly said on some level that point was mbeicause the applicant was not proposing three tal
stories, but was proposing four stories. Ms. Vamald said if the argument from the neighbors was



March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 15 of 24

height, then if each story was 8 feet instead offéet then the building would be short enough that
there would be no issue.

9:16:49 PM  Mr. Chomick stated these buildings would be roydhd feet from the eave of the
buildings. He said from grade it would be rougé@/feet.

Mr. Ferri stated he had flown the balloon at 7Q,feecause he believed that was the ridge elevation

Mr. Segmiller said most ordinances measured hewmlain average height of a roof, not to the peak.
He stated in virtually every location they had wexkhat had a story issue would also have a height
limit that was measured by an average of the distda the peak and the distance of the roof. Mr.
Segmiller stated that meant it was measured fraoatativo-thirds up the roof.

9:17:55 PM  Mr. Barker asked the Board set a restriction agtiteat 65 feet, could they meet that.
Mr. Segmiller responded they met that now, withfthe-story building.

9:18:21 PM  Mr. Remington said they were getting into delibera issues as opposed to public
hearing issues. Mr. Farrelly said that Ms. Wallaael made a good point, in that if the four stories
was an issue then that needed to be said so #aatctuld get a response, and then the Board would
have that information during its deliberation.

9:19:01 PM  Ms. Wallace stated she did not believe the Boadl afirm opinion on that, in that it
appeared the Board members had a variety of ofgnion

Mr. Farrelly said it was a confusing issue when yalked about the height limitations and the actual
stories. He said the four story height was undeatvihad been done elsewhere, 65 feet was the limit
allowed, and this project was below that. Ms. Haadid she wanted to make it clear that this distri
did not have a height number associated with it,ifodid state three stories. Mr. Farrelly statbdt

the other districts that had a height limit haddt at 65 feet. Ms. Hauth said the highest numiaer

65 feet, that it ranged form 30 to 65 feet.

Mayor Stevens said in this plan the buildings wdoédunder 65 feet, from the peak of the roof. He
said the issue was partly the precedence in theaagpce in Hillsborough, and were they within what
would be allowed in other places in Town. Ms. Hiaatlded that height was measured from the mean
elevation to the highest grade, which was whagfi@icant was stating they were meeting.

9:21:49 PM  Lee Gordon stated that he was not adamantly opptsiur stories, in that it could
be done in a way that it did not look like it wasif floors. He said that could be done by usingkbr
using darker exterior colors, and dropping thedrsygstem with a lower roof pitch so that it blended
into the surrounding area.

9:22:37 PM  Mr. Chomick stated that in respect to Mr. Gordibrey had wanted to lower the scale
of everything along his side of the site. He shitley looked at taking away those cottages aliad
southeast corner, the three-story building in thddie would have to be pushed out 50 feet. Mr.
Chomick said right now that building from the prdageline was 75 feet, and from the edge of the
other building was another 100+ feet. So, he dhily were about 150 feet from the property line to
that building.



March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 16 of 24

9:23:16 PM  Ms. Shapiro said she would like to request theesaamsideration for herself that Mr.
Gordon was receiving. She asked that they takéatbeenormous buildings that were directly behind
the pond and directly behind her house and maka theplexes. Mr. Ferri said they did not have the
flexibility to do that, noting that if they did théghey would be expanding out into the campus which
would remove more green space and increase thavips areas. Ms. Shapiro said they had done it
once by demonstrating that they had the flexibildyput duplexes where they had put huge houses,
and asked that they do that again to accommodate he

Mr. Ferri commented that her property line was 183 away, whereas Mr. Gordon’s was 100 feet.
Ms. Shapiro stated she could see the balloons frembackyard. Mr. Ferri stated he had taken a
picture from her backyard and the balloon was mble.

9:25:04 PM  Mr. Whitlow wondered about the exposed parkingkdemd asked was there any
option to incorporate the two four-story buildingg flattening them and spreading them out over the
parking structure. Mr. Ferri responded there wamiking deck below that structure. Mr. Whitlow
asked why it could not be incorporated so thatetfosr-story buildings were flattened and spreatd ou
on top of the parking deck. Mr. Ferri said thatwabomove them closer to Ms. Shapiro’s house.

9:27:34 PM  Ms. Wallace asked what the height would be in Nh&HS plan if this plan were
rejected. Mr. Ferri responded three stories, antieory it could be the same height as what was no
being proposed.

9:29:07 PM  Mr. Ferri stated that the elevation of Ms. Shapirbouse was 25 feet below the
elevation of the buildings being discussed, whiokaty affected the view of them. He said a three
story building could have 10 foot ceilings, althbug was possible they would be nine feet, but that
would mean that there were be 12 feet floor torflomr. Ferri said the four-story concrete struetur
would likely have a thinner floor-ceiling assembdg it was not just one story less. He said it was
probably something less than that with the diffeeeim the height between the two. Mr. Ferri shat t
difference would be below 10 feet.

9:30:18 PM  Ms. Wallace asked would evergreens help with tearv Ms. Shapiro said she was
the lowest house on St. Mary’s Road, so alreadyesioimg would look down on her property. She
said to make the buildings even higher was eversevoiShe said that evergreens were better than no
evergreens but they would have to be of a substasitie to help.

9:31:49 PM  Mr. Farrelly asked the Board if they had all théormation they needed in order to
make a recommendation to the Town Board.

Ms. Wallace said yes, if they had enough informmatiegarding the difference in cost to the Town.
Mr. Farrelly said he did not believe they did, Il applicant had done all they could. He saig the
could keep the hearing open, or they could closéntraring and the applicant would have to live with
the decision. Mr. Farrelly said the applicant kdadcribed how they had interpreted that and wayld t

to make good on it, and he believed that was ad®gbod as they were going to get.

Mr. Ferri stated the point they had tried to makeswhat they could not negotiate that at this potat
it was something that needed the involvement ofTinen Attorney and the applicant’s attorney. He
said they could not negotiate the terms of somgtthat was governed by statute, which was a statute



March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 17 of 24

that in theory was in place to offer relief to &e8 that were contributing what would normallytas
dollars in some other way.

9:34:31 PM  Commissioner Hallman stated that could be covbyea condition in the approval.
ITEM #4: Adjourn Town Board

Upon a motion by Commissioner Hallman, secondedlby Wallace, the Boards moved to close the
public hearing. The motion was adopted unanimously

9:35:25 PM  Mr. Farrelly stated the public hearing was nowoadjed and the Town Board was
excused so that the Planning Board could contitsueéeting. He called for a short break.

BREAK

ITEM #5: Prepare recommendations to the Town Board on the Corbinton Commons
Special Use Permit modification request.

9:42:54 PM  Mr. Farrelly called the meeting back to order, asled for comments.

9:43:10 PM  Ms. Vandemark said she really liked the idea, th@CRC would be a benefit for the
Town, that it would bring in people who would shiopthe Town, that a lot of the people would be
local, and in that sense it was a boon for Hillslighh. She said it was better than if you put nglst
family homes in that area. Ms. Vandemark saidvea® not sure about it being revenue neutral, do tha
needed to be worked out. She said as far as $itwees versus four stories, it was the height rmotd
the number of stories that was of concern. Ms.déamark said if it fell within the standard of thest

of the Town and it was buffered, then it was ok&he said she did not see it as a terrible additon
the area, and in fact believed it would be a gaiditeon.

9:45:36 PM  Mr. Barker said he did live with a large commek@eoperty behind his house, and it
was about 20 feet higher than his house with a@sbrick wall that he could see. He said pathat
brick wall was Wal-Mart’s loading dock. But, hedat was not too bad and it was barely noticeable
in the summer. He said he did not share the ytlinsumption concern that was raised. Mr. Barker
said in general with a commitment to 60 or everie®® peaks on the structures he believed it woald b
reasonable.

9:47:26 PM  Ms. Woodman said she was not as comfortable aeubeight, noting there was a
big difference between three and four stories. &lded that she applauded the loss of the fifibr flo
Ms. Woodman said the variation in height was gdud,they could go further. She said she was also
concerned about revenue neutrality.

9:48:33 PM  Mr. Whitlow said when an elderly person slipped &ell the Fire Department would
usually come, and those increased trips by the B@gartment would need to be considered. He said
the height of the buildings seemed out of scalé wie surrounding homes. Mr. Whitlow said the US
70 Strategic Plan called for two and three stosesthis would set a precedent. He said perhaps th
two buildings closest to the pond could be lowetedhree stories and somehow incorporate the
parking deck. He said he believed he could livehwie project if the buildings were three stories
rather than four stories.



March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 18 of 24

9:51:05 PM  Mr. Remington wondered if there was some way tiospmething over the parking lot
to bring the height down to three stories. He &aiithg that, he was concerned that there mightago
much more room to give on this. Mr. Remington daédagreed with the point that if they wanted to
have a Town that was going to participate in soeasa@nable way with the growth that was happening
in the overall area without increasing the suburbprawl, then they were going to be seeing some
density development and taller buildings. He $e&dvould be advocating in favor of that at the ngk
some other things that he cared about, noting hddvather err in that direction. Mr. Remingtorndsa
he believed things could be done to mitigate tbateswith the judicious use of brick and stone gjdin
and plantings. He said he would prefer somethihgrathan the Cypresses, but whatever appealed to
the neighbors was fine with him. Mr. Remingtonds#he alley should be removed, adding it
compromised the ability to buffer that effectively.

9:53:38 PM  Ms. Wallace said they needed to remember to paytaan to what they would be
getting if this plan was not approved. She saidhet case what would they be getting, noting it
seemed that it would be better for the Town congbéoethe alternative. Ms. Wallace said this was
supposed to be a better model and it should berldettthe Town.

Ms. Vandemark said part of the difference was ype of facility and the level of care.

Ms. Wallace said they needed to balance the bengktthe impact to the neighbors, noting it looked
like less impact to her.

9:56:02 PM  Mr. Remington said regarding the emergency vistaff would be present 24/7 so

that should reduce the potential calls to the Bepartment mentioned earlier. He said if it were a
medical emergency then the Fire Department woulddied, but having medical staff on site would
somewhat reduce those calls.

Mr. Farrelly said it appeared the real stickingnpavas the height. He said he wanted to hear trem
applicant and ask what they could say to addressotie point of concern.

9:59:35 PM  Mr. Lippard stated what they were hearing was thate was one particular four-
story building that was the chief offender. Hedsduey needed a certain number of units to make the
project work, and they were limited in where theyld redistribute units. Mr. Lippard said they wbu
say without question that they could reduce onddlng to three stories, and find a way, possibly by
reducing the square footage of the duplexes, adidtrbbute them somewhere else. He said they
would work hard to make the screening issue to wayathrough landscaping and the use of
evergreens. Mr. Lippard said to make the commuvidple, they had to have a certain number of
units, and if they could go elsewhere they would.

10:04:31 PM Ms. Woodman said there was somewhere else tongbtheat was across the stream.
Mr. Lippard responded that elderly residents nedddu able to walk to the common areas, noting the
second generation of residents came in older tlayears of age. He said the access to central
services was critical.

10:05:39 PM Mr. Whitlow, using the site plan, suggested tugnout one of the buildings and
twisting another one, then replace another buildag was configured differently. Mr. Segmillerdan
Mr. Chomick indicated that that area dropped ofisiderably and they would have to fill that hole to



March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 19 of 24

make it work. Mr. Segmiller said that Ms. Shapsrproperty was 500 feet away and at an elevation of
515’, and their property was at 540’. He saiché\t turned the building to an L-shaped, she woeld s
more.

Mr. Chomick said regarding the height, they coulektrthe 65’ maximum to the peak. Ms. Hauth said
that was the most the Town’s ordinance allowednin district. Mr. Chomick said the average height
to the roof would be much less, perhaps 60 febdsw.

Ms. Wallace asked what height limit commitment tlempld get with a three-story building. Mr.
Chomick responded perhaps around 48 feet.

10:09:38 PM Mr. Farrelly asked Ms. Shapiro what she thougttuabwhat the developer had just
said. Ms. Shapiro said it was clear that thredestavere better than four stories, and it was gtsad
that it was just a corner facing her house.

Mr. Gordon said the clientele of this facility wdube of a higher standard, and that would benfedit t
Town in a number of ways. He said if the develspmyuld give them assurances that they would be
meticulous and work with the neighbors, that it Womean they probably had done all that they could
do and this was likely the best they could get.

10:12:39 PM Mr. Farrelly asked the Board had the developesimments help to ease their concern
about the height, or did they still have concerns.

10:13:04 PM Ms. Wallace said she appreciated Mr. Segmillergument that density could be
good and it was coming, but her main concern reetathe height and the effect on the neighbors on
that beautiful road. She said she understooddiad not stop the development, but they needed to
get that one building down to three stories.

10:13:48 PM Ms. Woodman said she was pleased they had shasefiioor off the corner building,
but would like to see them continue that with thieeo two buildings. She said she would like to see
the building next to that one at three stories all s the corner building on the other end. Mr.
Segmiller said the problem was they were out ofl land had no room to spread out without eating
into the buffers.

10:14:33 PM  Mr. Whitlow said he was torn, in that the old plaas really bad and he liked the
more urban style development. He said he also kreewould be really annoyed if he was a neighbor
and the Code was written a certain way. Mr. Whitkaid perhaps the Code should be changed to say
that no more than three stories would be allowdd. asked about the parking area which was a deck.
Mr. Segmiller stated it was at grade and would betseen, and it would not be seen from the
southwestern side. He added that if the buildiag trick and so would this be, rather than concrete

10:16:02 PM Mr. Farrelly said one building did not have a fiXieeight, although the developer had
said the maximum would be 65 feet. He said thatlavset a different type of precedent.

Mr. Whitlow asked could they make another tradat ik, take a story off one building and increase
another to 4 stories. He wondered if that wouldni@re palatable to the neighbors. Mr. Gordon
responded that would make Ms. Shapiro happier inutdss happy.



March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 20 of 24

10:18:32 PM Mr. Farrelly asked who on the Board adamantly ciei@ to anything above three
stories.

Ms. Woodman said she was still concerned abouptbeedent, but did not want the other plan. Mr.
Barker said choosing this would not negate the rogiten in itself, but gave them the option. Ms.
Woodman said it would still be a precedent.

10:19:12 PM Mr. Hornik said regarding a precedent this wapex®l use district, and you could do
whatever you wanted within the confines of thatcggedistrict. He said there was language in the
standards that said when the appropriate circurcssapresented itself the Town Board had the
authority to vary, for instance, from the threergtor four story limitations. He said if it wasethight
application, within the confines of the purpose,uycould waive standards in appropriate
circumstances. Mr. Hornik said he offered thastiow there was flexibility built into the speciadeu
process in the ordinance.

Mr. Hornik said he believed that the way threeistohad come about was when Corbinton Commons
was first presented, and the Town was creatinggbesial use district based on that proposal, &ind i
was proposed for a maximum height of three storide.said because Corbinton was proposing three
stories, that was what had been placed in the atdador this district. Mr. Hornik said three sésr
was not placed in the ordinance because that whghsas you could go, but because that was what
was being proposed at the time the district waatere

Ms. Hauth said another issue that was much moreritapt at the time the standards were written was
to insist that there be elevators, because theydmadher proposal that had three stories without
elevators. She said at the time they had been gmrght up in the elevator issue than the building
height issue.

Mr. Hornik said he was not saying they should attlee four stories, only that the three stories was
somewhat arbitrarily arrived at and he did notddiit was intended by the Town Board to say that
three stories was as high as they would ever cengiing.

10:21:45 PM Mr. Barker said he believed the precedent wouldhia¢ they were saying that that a
CCRC along US 70 could be 65’. He said any otlhepgsal would likely not have the same criteria.

Ms. Vandemark said each application was lookechaguely and not based on what had been done in
the past, so it was not really setting a precedent.

Ms. Woodman said they could say that, but her guestould be did that leave them vulnerable. Mr.
Hornik said you only needed to articulate why thiss different from others, and to create a rational
basis for why it was treated differently. He stidy were not working from a blank slate, but fram
plan that the developer had the right to build, #rat was certainly something that distinguished it
from the next application that would come in.

10:23:43 PM Mr. Farrelly asked what if this never happened ey were thinking about this type
of district. He asked what would have been thesimrations in terms of height and compatibility
with where this type of district would be used.



March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 21 of 24

Ms. Hauth said if they were starting from scratclthis district, she believed they would want to do
some of the things this applicant had testifiedsdo what the new model was for a CCRC. She said
the new model was becoming denser because wallyalidis so important and the average age of
residents was increasing. Ms. Hauth said thatespokvhat this type of district might have allowed.
She said if they were writing the standards nowauld likely be different in terms of discussions
about stories, in that maybe they would set a hdigtit and maybe they wouldn’t, and maybe they
would talk about how it addressed the neighborhood.

Ms. Hauth said they had not done a lot of researchietirement centers when the standards were
written, but wrote it based on a plan that had h@esented to the Town. But, she said, it wadlid va
concern, reflecting how it related to the neighlomdh She said one question might be was it
compatible with the surrounding neighborhood, amdla you even see the surrounding neighborhood
to know whether it was compatible. Ms. Hauth saigat they had looked at when writing the
standards was to make sure the ranges of serviaesneluded. She said at that time they did not
know the differences between CCRC'’s, assisteddivatilities and the like, so if they were writing
the standards now it would likely be very different

10:27:04 PM Mr. Farrelly said the thing that troubled him wtast there was not a lot of thought
put in the number of stories or the height, and thag put more thought into it they may not have se
any limits because it was a special use district @ch proposal would be different. He said they
needed to determine if the development felt corbpatvith the surrounding neighborhoods and did it
seem harmonious, and forget about precedent bedawss a special use district. Mr. Farrelly said
they could imagine they were in that scenario astdget hung up on the three stories or the height.

Mr. Farrelly said what did concern him was thasttevelopment had a lot of structures, and flying
balloons would not really convey what this wouldnslate into in terms of what the neighbors would
face. He said aside from the attributes of theeiofhan, it was three stories, and at some lewa} th
were trusting that what the developers were sawiag if it was limited to three stories they would
walk away and go back to the previous plan becthesewould not get the number of units necessary
to be viable. Mr. Farrelly said given the size apéce, the developers had to go up because they
could not go out, but since the Town was not ptivghe business model they could not really know
what all the variables were.

10:30:35 PM Mr. Barker asked if their test question was toedwaine if it was worthy to send
forward.

Mr. Farrelly said they would make a recommendatsrto what they think it should look like, one
way or another. He said they should all be thigkabout whether they would be proud to have
recommended this plan as it currently stood onceaithed build out.

10:33:05 PM Ms. Wallace asked how could you vote on threeiedpisince it was a completely
different thing.

Mr. Farrelly said then you should say you did ni&e Ithe plan because of that. He said if the
developers could respond to that then they would, iithey did not then they could hope that the
Town Board would make a different decision.

10:33:55 PM Ms. Vandemark said she would like to asked thghtmars if they could live with it.



March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 22 of 24

10:34:22 PM Ms. Shapiro said that a CCRC was better for thenrand for the neighbors, but she
was not convinced that they could not make a peofd not ruin her back yard. She said she would
not smile about it, but it was an improvement hgvihe building three stories, adding she would
rather they all be three stories. Ms. Shapiro édagkehe Planning Board’s recommendation could
include that the applicant had already agreed tkenttaat building three stories. She said her duest
was whether that height limit could be incorporated

Mr. Farrelly said that could be made clear as pfitie recommendation.

10:35:49 PM Mr. Remington said there were several other itdras needed to be discussed, one of
which was the question of pedestrian access. Helered if it should be made a condition that the
applicant work out some sort of pedestrian accessrds the downtown. Mr. Remington said

regarding the revenue neutral issue, the applicadtsaid they would pay for the trash collectian, s

that should be a condition.

Mr. Hornik noted that on the CCRC side of the ditecause of the number of units that commercial
dumpster service would be provided, which was megliby the Commercial Solid Waste ordinance.

Ms. Hauth noted that the duplexes that were a @lathe CCRC would not be included, that they
would have regular trash service.

10:37:51 PM Mr. Whitlow asked what the state was of the pedest connection to the
neighborhood at Corbin Street. Ms. Hauth said grevious plan showed pedestrian access out to
Corbin Street. Mr. Whitlow said then that neededetmain with the new plan.

10:38:53 PM The Board then listed the conditions identifiedstiar with some brief discussion:

e 65" maximum peak for 4-story building

* 53 maximum peak for 3-story buildings

» pedestrian access to Corbin Street

* opaque vegetative screen along the south and tastitoally satisfactory materials with the
neighbors

» lighting not to exceed .5 footcandle at propertgesd

» southernmost corner structure reduced from 4 tor3es and units moved elsewhere

» the alley would be eliminated behind the duplexes

» developer would incorporate the use of brick amhestfor exterior materials to make the site
more visually appealing

» parking deck exterior to receive the same extereatment as he buildings

* 5 duplexes would become 14 units not to exceed $6Q@re feet per unit, not including garage

» standard conditions and non-MAHS conditions carry

» street does not connect to St. Mary’s Road

» final approval of construction drawings and othtandards

» conditions in original SUP that do not impact CCi®e carried forward to this plan

Mr. Farrelly said it was important that the TowndBd understood their rationale and some of the
issues that still made them uncomfortable.



MOTION:

abkw

© 00N

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.

18.

March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 23 of 24

Mr. Remington moved to recommend approval of the SUP ModificaiRequest for
Corbinton Commons to the Town Board with the amesninto convert to a CCRC
model as proposed with the following modificati@msl conditions:

southernmost building of the complex east of theash will be reduced from 4 stories to 3
stories

. 5 duplexes would increase to 14 units at 1600 sqtesmt each, not including garage, and

garages would face the house

maximum height (peak) be no more than 65’ for 4ystoo more than 53’ for 3 story

no alley behind duplexes

exterior siding materials will incorporate brickddar stone — 40% in vertical sections and
remaining siding be neutral with a variety of cslor

pedestrian access to Corbin Street to connectwmitovn

opaque vegetative buffer — 8 to 10’ at installeiight

maintain all existing conditions not specific to M&

.5 footcandle light limits at property line

exterior parking deck will be treated with the sdimesh as the building

turned duplex plan with alley eliminated

all CCRC units will be served by dumpster

no street connection to St. Mary’s Road providedheyapplicant

final approval of construction drawings and othitandards

conditions in original SUP that do not impact CCRE€re carried forward to this plan
applicant and Town shall negotiate terms regardavgnue neutrality

the 50-foot buffer shall be preserved as much asiple with the understanding that there

would be path through it

entire CCRC would be treated as a unit for the psep of trash collection, which was the
entire east side of the creek, for which the dgwaloor CCRC would be financially
responsible

19.fence with gate in sewer easement at Caine Sfrapproved by Town utilities

10:59:38 PM Mr. Remington said it was important to state tihat height variance was acceptable
in consistency with other height limits in Town aedmake the size of the development viable for its
intended purposes. There was general agreementifie® Board.

SECOND:
VOTE:

Ms. Vandemark.
Unanimous (Wallace, Remington, Farrelly, VandemaBarker, Woodman, and
Whitlow).

Mr. Farrelly said that personally he wanted 3 s®rand nothing more, but the project was also

offering a

lot of benefit to the Town and was bettean the alternative, and hopefully they would al

be proud of it when it was completed.

Ms. Woodman said she would like to see the Townr@aget more of the buildings close to the
neighborhoods scaled back to 3 stories.



March 20, 2008 Joint Public Hearing
Approved: May 15, 2008
Page 24 of 24

ITEM #6: Committee Reports and Updates.

11:03:10 PM Mr. Remington, for the Board of Adjustment, saidttat its March meeting the BOA
had approved a Special Exemption Permit for antexdio a house on a non-conforming lot; they had
an appeal regarding when campaign signs went updah election, which was for it to be tied to the
early voting date rather than election day, whioé BOA had agreed to; and, they had held a special
meeting with the Historic District Commission tediiss issues related to the Hopper appeal.

11:05:31 PM Ms. Wallace, for the Parks and Recreation Boaid, they continued to work on their
Connectivity Plan; and, had heard a request fromnTityon Business Center at Meadowlands for a
recommendation to the Town Board to donate laniderathan make a payment-in-lieu of providing
recreation area, and the Board had said they watter have the funds.

11:06:00 PM Ms. Vandemark, for the Tourism Board, stated thext meeting would be a
presentation of the grant applications.

ITEM #7: Discussion of ordinancerequirementsfor temporary signs.
MOTION: Mr. Barker moved to table this item.

SECOND: Mr. Remington.

VOTE: Unanimous.

ITEM #8: Election of Officers.

11:07:11 PM Mr. Farrelly stated that at present he was therGimal Ms. Vandemark was the Vice
Chair. Ms. Hauth said they also needed to makeypip@intments to the Board of Adjustment and the
Park and Recreation Board.

MOTION: Mr. Barker moved to keep the present officers for the upcgmyiar, as well as the
present representatives to the Board of Adjustnaent the Parks and Recreation

Board.
SECOND: Ms. Woodman.
VOTE: Unanimous.
ITEM #9: Adjourn.

Upon a motion by Mr. Remington, seconded by Ms. démark, the Board moved to adjourn the
meeting. The vote was unanimous. The meetingadgmirned at 11:11 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

W/ Houbh

Margaret A. Hauth, Secretary




